
   

 
 

 

Nottingham City Council 

Planning Committee 

 
Date: Wednesday, 22 March 2023 
 
Time:  2.30 pm 
 
Place: Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, 

NG2 3NG 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 
 

 
Director for Legal and Governance 
 
Governance Officer: James Lavender     Direct Dial: 0115 876 4643 
 

   
1  Apologies for Absence  

 
 

2  Declarations of Interests  
 

 

3  Minutes  
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 22 February 2023 
 

3 - 8 

4  Planning Applications: Reports of the Director of Planning and 
Regeneration  
 

 

a   159 Hucknall Road Nottingham Nottingham City NG5 1FD  
 

9 - 22 

5  Current Context for Purpose Built Student Accommodation in 
Nottingham  
 

Verbal 
Update 

 

If you need any advice on declaring an interest in any item on the agenda, please contact 
the Governance Officer shown above, if possible before the day of the meeting  
 

Citizens attending meetings are asked to arrive at least 15 minutes before the start of the 
meeting to be issued with visitor badges 
 
Citizens are advised that this meeting may be recorded by members of the public. Any 
recording or reporting on this meeting should take place in accordance with the Council’s 
policy on recording and reporting on public meetings, which is available at 

Public Document Pack



www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk. Individuals intending to record the meeting are asked to notify 
the Governance Officer shown above in advance.



1 

Nottingham City Council  
 
Planning Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held at Loxley House, Nottingham on 22 February 2023 
from 2.30 pm - 3.55 pm 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Michael Edwards (Chair) 
Councillor Graham Chapman (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Angela Kandola 
Councillor Gul Nawaz Khan 
Councillor Sally Longford 
Councillor Ethan Radford (for items 57-60) 
Councillor Mohammed Saghir 
 

Councillor Leslie Ayoola 
Councillor Azad Choudhry 
Councillor Kevin Clarke 
Councillor Jay Hayes 
Councillor Corall Jenkins 
Councillor AJ Matsiko 
Councillor Salma Mumtaz 
Councillor Toby Neal 
Councillor Cate Woodward 
 

 
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
Ann Barrett - Legal Team Leader, Planning and Environment 
Matt Gregory - Head of Planning Strategy and Geographic Information 
Rob Percival - Area Planning Manager 
Paul Seddon - Director of Planning and Regeneration 
Nigel Turpin - Principle Design and Conservation Officer 
Phil Wye - Governance Officer 
 
57  Apologies for Absence 

 
Councillor Leslie Ayoola - leave 
Councillor Kevin Clarke – work commitments 
Councillor AJ Matsiko – other Council business 
Councillor Salma Mumtaz - leave 
Councillor Toby Neal – unwell 
Councillor Cate Woodward - unwell 
 
58  Declarations of Interests 

 
Councillor Michael Edwards declared that his previous public remarks regarding 
Sovereign House could cast reasonable doubt on his ability to make an unbiased 
decision. In addition Cllr Edwards wished to address the Committee as Ward 
Councillor on this item which would then require him to leave the meeting prior to 
discussion and voting on this item. 
 
59  Minutes 

 
The minutes of the meetings held on 21 December 2021 and on 18 January 2023 
were confirmed as a correct record and were signed by the Chair. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Planning Committee - 22.02.23 

2 

60  Site Of Multi Storey Car Park Sovereign House And Factories Queens 
Bridge Road Nottingham 

 
Prior to the Committee’s consideration of this item, Councillor Michael Edwards 
addressed the Committee in his role as a Ward Councillor and made the following 
points: 
 
(a) he had addressed the Committee as Ward Councillor and spoken out against the 

hybrid application when it was presented to Committee and had criticised the 
development (especially Phase 1)  due to its poor appearance and poor 
environmental credentials. The Phase 1 building is utilitarian, will not meet current 
energy targets and is likely to be redundant in 25 years time. He had particularly 
been critical of its energy consumption, particularly during the summer months, 
since it has been constructed and occupied; 
 

(b) whilst he is mindful that this application is for reserved matters only, he would 
urge the Committee to look at the building’s attractiveness and its energy 
efficiency claims in light of the city striving to become carbon neutral. 

 
Councillor Michael Edwards left the meeting prior to discussion and voting on this 
item. Councillor Graham Chapman chaired the Committee for the remainder of this 
item. 
 
Rob Percival, Area Planning Manager, presented application 22/00083/PRES4 by 
Carney Sweeney on behalf of Peveril Securities Limited, for approval of reserved 
matters in relations to details of appearance and landscaping for Phase 2 office 
development (Use-Class B1) approved under the hybrid planning application 
reference 18/02277/POUT. 
 
Rob Percival delivered a presentation which included indicative images of the 
proposal. 
 
The following points were highlighted: 
 
(a) Unity Square occupies a triangular site which is located to the south of the City 

Centre. It has frontages to Queen’s Bridge Road/Sheriffs Way, Burnham Way, 
and also adjoins the main railway line from which it is separated by the Tinker’s 
Leen watercourse; 
 

(b) Hybrid planning application (18/0277/POUT) was granted in January 2019 for a 
full planning permission for Phase 1 and outline planning permission for Phase 2. 
Details approved as part of the outline permission included layout, scale and 
access. Details of appearance and landscaping were reserved for future approval 
and this application seeks approval for those outstanding ‘reserved matters’. 
Sustainability was not a matter under consideration within those reserved matters 
though some details were contained within the report by way of an update. 
 

(c) Phase 1 of Unity Square is now complete and occupied by HM Revenue and 
Customs (HMRC). Phase 2 is to be a 12 storey office development. The lower 
ground floor is to accommodate parking for 30 cars, 100 cycles, bin storage and 

Page 4



Planning Committee - 22.02.23 

3 

plant. The remaining part of the ground floor and upper floors would provide open 
plan office floorspace; 
 

(d) the originally submitted scheme proposed a more triangular shaped building with 
flat elevations, largely finished in a terracotta coloured, powder coated aluminium 
cladding. However, the form and architectural treatment of Phase 2 has 
subsequently been re-designed to more closely reflect the indicative proposals 
submitted as part of the 2018 hybrid application; 

 
(e) landscaping is proposed along the northern and western boundaries of the site. 

Seating and planters are proposed on the elevated area of public realm around 
the entrance to the building. 

 
Members of the Committee commented as follows: 
 
(f) it is pleasing to note that sustainability considerations have improved since phase 

1. It is unclear what is proposed for the roof, but photovoltaic panels or a green 
roof would be preferred, and this can be looked at separately when discharging 
conditions. The number of cycle spaces could potentially be increased and it was 
hoped that the narrower profile of the phase 2 building will aid with lighting; 
 

(g) the quality of the materials used for the cladding is an important consideration. 
This will likely now be the same quality as that used for phase 1 albeit a subtly 
different colour; 
 

(h) the opportunities for landscaping on this site are limited but trees along Tinkers 
Leen could be considered.  

 
Resolved to  
 
(1) grant reserved matters approval subject to: 
 

(a) no adverse, material comments being received by the 28th February 
2023 which arise from further publicity and consist of issues other 
than those already addressed by this report; 
 

(b) the indicative conditions substantially in the form of those listed in 
the draft decision notice at the end of this report. 
 

(2) delegate power to determine the final details of the conditions to the 
Director for Planning and Transport. 

 
 
61  191-195 (16A And 16B) Lower Parliament Street, Nottingham NG1 3DA 

 
Rob Percival, Area Planning Manager, presented application 22/00889/PFUL3 by 
Miss Kelly Paddick on behalf of Maven Property (Nottingham) LP , for full planning 
permission for an upward extension to an existing 2 storey building to create a 
building of 3- 5 storeys in height. 
 

Page 5



Planning Committee - 22.02.23 

4 

Rob Percival delivered a presentation which included indicative images of the 
proposal. 
 
The following points were highlighted: 
 
(a) the proposal is for an upward extension of between one and three stories to 

create a building three to five stories in height (plus existing basement). The 
ground floor would be retained as retail use, with the upper floors used as 104 
student bedspaces with a mixture of cluster and studio flats; 
 

(b) the proposal includes the removal and re-facading of the existing building, 
including the creation of new openings on the ground and first floor. The entrance 
to the student accommodation is on the southern elevation, accessed from the 
northern end of Thurland Street; 
 

(c) the proposal includes the retention of the existing ground floor retail prevision and 
will refurbish part of the basement to provide retail storage space to compensate 
for the loss of the existing first floor storage space. Additionally, the scheme 
incorporates enhancements and the provision of infrastructure to the side 
elevations fronting Clinton Streets East and West to facilitate comprehensive 
street trader provision along both frontages; 
 

(d) the existing building is of poor architectural quality that is harmful to its immediate 
context and adjacent streets in particular. The proposed scheme, including the re-
facading of the existing building, would transform the appearance of this property 
and functionally how it interacts with the adjacent streets; 
 

(e) the proposed materials are intended to create a building that is light in colour, 
comprising two tones on brickwork (the primary material), stone detailing, and 
light grey/blue terracotta cladding to the recessed upper floors. The windows, 
louvres and other elements of metalwork are to be finished in anodised 
aluminium, bronze in colour; 
 

(a) the first floor has a bridge which connects to the first floor of the Victoria Shopping 
Centre opposite. This bridge is not within the applicant’s ownership and outside of 
the site boundary. 

 
The following information was provided following questions and comments from 
members of the Committee: 
 
(b) the current building is extremely unattractive so it is good that it is being improved, 

as well as that the original structure is being retained and that a green roof is 
being incorporated; 
 

(c) the palate of colours for the brickwork is unclear from the renders. A lighter brick 
colour would be preferred to brighten the streetscape, particularly on Clinton 
Street; 
 

(d) it is unfortunate that the bridge to the Victoria Centre will remain but it is 
understood regarding the different ownership; 
 

Page 6



Planning Committee - 22.02.23 

5 

(j) the complaints from the residents of the adjacent Crusader House are noted but 
not of sufficient weight to refuse the application.  

 
Resolved to 
 
(1) grant planning permission subject to 

 
i. a financial contribution of £122,481 towards off-site Public Open 

Space/Public Realm; 
 

ii. targets associated with Local Employment and Training opportunities, 
including a financial contribution of £23,212; 
 

iii. a financial contribution of £200,659 towards off-site affordable housing; 
 

iv. a student management scheme which shall include a restriction on car 
usage. 
 

(2) delegate power to determine the final details of the planning obligation and 
conditions of planning permission to the Director of Planning and 
Transport; 
 

(3) confirm that the Committee are satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the planning 
obligations sought are (a) necessary to make the development acceptable in 
planning terms, (b) directly related to the development and (c) fairly and 
reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 
 

 
62  Greater Nottingham Strategic Plan - Preferred Approach 

 
Matt Gregory, Head of Planning Strategy and Geographic Information, presented the 
report and delivered a presentation for consultation on the Greater Nottingham 
Strategic Plan, which has been approved for consultation by Nottingham City 
Council, Broxtowe Borough, Gedling Borough and Rushcliffe Borough Councils. The 
following information was highlighted: 
 
(a) this is not the full version of the strategic plan (which will eventually replace the 

current Core Strategy) but focusses on the overarching strategy, housing 
numbers and distribution, and economic development. The next stage will include 
heritage, biodiversity, green belt and transport; 
 

(b) main principles of the strategy include blue and green infrastructure, promotion of 
urban living, and enhancement of quality of life; 
 

(c) a minimum of 49,900 homes are targeted between 2022 and 2038. Over half of 
these are proposed in the Nottingham City Council area. Strategic housing sites 
include the Boots site, Stanton Tip and the Broad Marsh area; 
 

(d) the Plan proposes to provide a range of sites for employment and economic 
development covering 234,500 square metres of office development and 21 

Page 7



Planning Committee - 22.02.23 

6 

hectares of industrial and warehousing space; 
 

(e) the Plan recognises the importance of the city centre, town centres, universities, 
existing employment land, and local employment and training; 
 

(f) a full draft of the Plan will be completed later this year which, subject to planning 
reform, is likely to be submitted for examination and subsequent adoption in 2024.  

 
The following points were raised by the Committee during the discussion which 
followed: 
 
(g) it is difficult to plan long-term when expectations of travel, shopping and other 

services change regularly. The plan is reviewed on a 5 year cycle and is 
deliberately flexible to allow for change; 
 

(h) there is a shortage of housing so developing new sites such as Broad Marsh is 
positive but will require external funding. New housing must be as sustainable as 
possible; 
 

(i) there are some difficult retail sites in the city centre for which it will be difficult to 
find an alternative use, such as the former Debenhams building. These sites 
should be prioritised for development; 
 

(j) there is an ongoing pressure for student accommodation in the city. It makes 
sense to build this in the city centre and to avoid building on industrial sites on 
fringes of the city. The housing needs of older people also need to be considered 
in the city centre; 
 

Resolved to note the Greater Nottingham Strategic Plan – Preferred Approach 
 

Page 8



 
 
Wards Affected: Berridge Item No:  
 

Planning Committee 
22 March 2023 

 
 
Report of Director of Planning and Transport 
 
159 Hucknall Road 
 
1 Summary 
 
Application No: 22/01525/PFUL3 for planning permission 

 
Application by: Hockley Developments Ltd 

 
Proposal: New two-and-a-half storey building to provide 11 one-bed Class 

C3 supported living dwellings with staff and communal areas. 
 
This application is bought to committee because of the significant level of public interest 
that is contrary to the recommendation. 
 
To meet the Council's Performance Targets this application should have been determined 
by 24th January 2023. 
 
 
2 Recommendation 
 
2.1 To GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to: -   

(a) prior completion of a Section 106 planning obligation to secure: 
 

(i) A financial contribution of £48,235.25 towards off-site affordable 
housing 

(ii) a financial contribution of £16,841.11 towards the provision or 
improvement of off-site open space 

(iii) a financial contribution of £4,611 towards employment and training 
   

(b) the indicative conditions substantially in the form of those listed in the draft 
decision notice at the end of this report. 

 
2.2 Power to determine the final details of the planning obligation and conditions of 

planning permission to be delegated to the Director of Planning and Regeneration. 
 
2.3  That Committee are satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community Infrastructure Levy 

Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the planning obligations sought are (a) 
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, (b) directly 
related to the development and (c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to 
the development. 

 
3 Background 
 
3.1 The site is a single storey, flat-roofed building on the corner of Hucknall Road and 

Teesdale Road. The building sits behind a parking forecourt and is on the same 
building line as the houses to the south on Hucknall Road. The area is primarily 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4a



 
residential, the site being bounded by houses. The building has long been in use for 
beauty treatments and is currently vacant, the business having moved premises. 

 
3.2 Planning permission was granted in February 2022 for ‘Construction of three 

houses following demolition of existing building’ (ref. 21/02090/PFUL3). 
 
4 Details of the proposal 
 
4.1 Planning permission is sought for to demolish the existing building on the site and 

erect a two-and-a-half storey, pitched roof building to provide eleven one-bed flats. 
The applicant, Hockley Developments, has confirmed that the proposed flats would 
be occupied within Use Class C3 of the Use Classes Order and would provide 
housing for vulnerable adults, this being supported by the Council's Commissioning 
and Procurement Team. The apartments would be let to working-age citizens who 
are eligible for support from Adult Social Care and who would have been assessed 
as being able to live independently in the community with an appropriate package 
of support. This support would be delivered through a 24-hour on-site staff 
presence, which would be delivered by a specialist provider who would be 
commissioned by the Council. The level of support given to individuals would be 
reviewed by the Adult Social Care Team. Each occupant would be party to a 
tenancy agreement and would be expected to adhere to the terms of that 
agreement. 
  

4.2 The proposed building would be two-and-a-half storeys of red brick with a slate 
roof, with metal clad dormers and front gable. Externally, bin and cycle storage are 
proposed to the rear and side of the building. Two off-street parking spaces are 
provided directly from Hucknall Road; a soft landscaped area is proposed on the 
corner with a low brick wall to be continued onto Teesdale Road, where it would be 
topped by railings. 
 

5 Consultations and observations of other officers 
 

Adjoining occupiers consulted: 
 
Adjoining occupiers on Hucknall, Teesdale and Weardale Road were notified of the 
application on 25.10.2022. Representations have been received from sixty 
residents, objecting to the proposal for the following reasons: 
 
- The lack of parking provided on the site will lead to congestion, parking issues 

and additional parking on Teesdale and Weardale Roads. 
 
- The nature of the occupiers will lead to ant-social behaviour, additional activity 

and disturbance detrimental to neighbouring occupiers and close to 
neighbourhood schools. 

 
- The scale of the building and its design will lead to loss of light, privacy and 

outlook for neighbouring occupiers. 
 

- The design of the building is out of keeping with the area. 
 
- Need to retain the southern wall of the existing building as this forms the 

boundary with the adjacent house on Hucknall Road. 
 
- Loss of the street tree on Teesdale Road as originally proposed is not 

Page 10



 
acceptable. It is noted that this proposal has now been omitted from the 
application. 

 
- The existing building should be on the Local List of heritage buildings. 
 
- Problems of noise and access to Teesdale and Weardale Roads during 

construction. It is noted that this is not directly a planning matter. Noise 
problems can be dealt with by the environmental health teams and there is no 
reason why access to the side road should be affected during construction. 

 
- The site should be used for family housing as per the previous grant of planning 

permission. 
 
- Development would lead to an overconcentration of similar supported living in 

the area. 
 
One resident has written in support of the proposal, being of the view that the 
building is visually acceptable, as is the proposed parking provision for such a use. 
Nottingham City Council Interim Commissioning Lead for Adults supports the 
proposal and is confident that the building would meet the needs of the citizens who 
would be living there. 

 
Additional consultation letters sent to: 
 
Environmental Health and Safer Places: no objection. 
 
Highways: no objection. 
 
Flood Risk Management: sustainable drainage strategy required. 
 
Planning Policy: no objection. Policies HO1 and HO4 of the Local Plan have been 
satisfactorily addressed by the applicants (this relates to family housing and 
overconcentration issues questioned above). 

 
6 Relevant policies and guidance 
 

National Planning Policy Framework (2021): 
 

The NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development 
and that applications for sustainable development should be approved where 
possible. Paragraph 126 notes that the creation of high quality buildings and places 
is fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve, and 
that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development. 
 
Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should 
ensure that developments: 
 
a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short 
term but over the lifetime of the development; 
b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 
effective landscaping; 
c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging 
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities); 

Page 11



 
d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 
places to live, work and visit; 
e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate 
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and 
support local facilities and transport networks; and 
f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health 
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users and 
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life 
or community cohesion and resilience. 

 
Aligned Core Strategies (2014): 
 
Policy 1 - Climate Change 
Policy 8 - Housing Size, Mix and Choice 
Policy 10 - Design and Enhancing Local Identity 
Policy 19 - Developer Contributions 
 
 
Local Plan Part 2 - Land and Planning Policies (January 2020) 

 
Policy CC1 - Sustainable Design and Construction 
Policy CC3 - Water 
Policy HO1 - Housing Mix 
Policy HO3 - Affordable Housing 
Policy DE1 - Building Design and Use 
Policy DE2 - Context and Place Making 
Policy EN2 - Open Space in New Development 
Policy EN7 - Trees 
Policy IN4 - Developer Contributions 
Policy EE4 - Local and Training Opportunities 

 
7. Appraisal of proposed development 
 
 Main Issues 

 
(i) Principle of the Development. 
(ii) Design and Impact on the Streetscene. 
(iii) Impact on Residential Amenity. 
(iv) Planning obligations. 

  
 Issue (i) Principle of the Development (ACS Policy 8 and LAPP Policy HO1 and 
DE1) 
 

7.1 ACS Policy 8 and LAPP Policy HO1 recognise that a general mix of housing 
tenures, types and sizes is desirable in order to create sustainable, inclusive and 
mixed communities. It is accepted that there is a need for more housing types, of all 
tenures, in almost all wards in Nottingham; this includes social one-bedroom self-
contained homes. Whilst Policy HO1 has a particular emphasis on the provision of 
family housing, it also recognises that there may be instances where alternative 
provision could meet other aims of the City Council. The Council’s Commissioning 
Lead for Adults supports the proposal and the Policy team accept that the 
development would meet housing aims of the City Council. Planning permission is 
sought for C3 use and so it would be granted on this basis, and any alternative use, 

Page 12



 
such as a hostel or house in multiple occupation, would require separate planning 
permission. As the flats are considered to be within Class C3, and comply with the 
Nationally Described Space Standards the proposal is considered to comply with 
Policy DE1 and Policy HO1 and is therefore acceptable in principle. 

 
 Issue (ii) Design and Impact on the Streetscene (ACS Policy 10 and LAPP 

Policies DE1 and DE2) 
 
7.2 The proposed building is considered to be visually acceptable. Lower, modern floor 

to ceiling heights and the provision of dormers in a two-and-a-half storey building 
mean that the eaves of the proposed building are only a little higher than adjacent 
houses on Hucknall Road. The design of the Hucknall and Teesdale Road 
elevations has been revised during consideration of the application, although this 
was driven partly by the requirement to retain the street tree on Teesdale Road 
(discussed below). The revised design, which involved the dormers and the metal 
cladding, is considered to be acceptable. The low brick wall and railings are an 
appropriate treatment for the front boundary.  

 
7.3 The application initially proposed removal of the adjacent street tree on Teesdale 

Road. This was not considered acceptable in terms of biodiversity and amenity and 
has been omitted from the scheme. Retention of the tree has resulted in changes to 
the building design to avoid the tree having an impact on light into and outlook from 
the proposed flats. The resulting layout is considered to be successful in achieving 
this and also in design terms. The proposal is therefore considered to comply with 
ACS Policy 10 and LAPP Policies DE1 and DE2. 

 
Issue (iii) Impact on Residential Amenity (ACS Policy 10 and LAPP Policies DE1 
and DE2) 

 
7.4 The relationship between the proposed building and the adjacent properties is 

considered to be acceptable. The proposed building is to the north and east of 
neighbouring houses, of a very similar height, and its physical impact in terms of 
loss of light is considered to be acceptable. Two bedroom windows would be 
located in the rear elevation of the proposed building but are an acceptable 
distance from neighbouring properties and would lead to no more loss of privacy 
than if the site were developed for family housing. The developers have agreed to 
retain the boundary walls around the site as requested by neighbours. 

 
7.5 The proposal provides two off-street parking spaces. It is noted, however, that this 

is a sustainable location close to bus stops, shops and other facilities. It is also 
accepted that occupiers of flats of this size, particularly the intended occupier 
group, are unlikely to be car owners. There is no objection from Highways. 

 
7.6 The proposed use for supported living and the support for the proposal and its 

continued use by the Council's Commissioning and Procurement Team and Adult 
Social Care and the presence of support staff all indicate that the use would not be 
detrimental to the living conditions of local residents in terms of anti-social 
behaviour. 

 
7.7 The proposal is therefore considered to comply with ACS Policy 10 and LAPP 

Policies DE1 and DE2. 
 
 
 

Page 13



 
Issue (iv) Planning Obligations (Policy 19 of the ACS, Policies IN4, HO3, EN2 
and EE4 of the LAPP) 

 
7.8 A policy compliant planning obligation for the proposed development would be 

expected to provide the following contributions:  
 

• Affordable Housing - £48,235.25 
• Public Open Space - £16,841.11 
• Employment and training - £4,611 

 
It is considered appropriate that the affordable housing is provided by way of off-
site contribution, rather than on-site provision, due to the specific nature of the 
intended end use. 
 

7.9 Such obligations are in line with adopted  policy and as such are considered to be 
(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, (b) directly 
related to the development and (c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to 
the development. 
 

7.10 The applicant has confirmed that these obligations are acceptable to them. 
 
8. Sustainability / Biodiversity (ACS Policies 1 and 10 and LAPP Policies CC1, 

CC3, DE1, DE2 and EN7) 
 
8.1 A planning condition can ensure the use of sustainable drainage. Whilst no specific 

features have been highlighted in the planning application, the building would need 
to incorporate appropriate energy/water conservation measures in order to comply 
with current Building Regulations. It is considered that this is sufficient to satisfy the 
requirements of Policy 1 of the Aligned Core Strategies and Policies CC1 and CC3 
of the Nottingham Local Plan. 

 
8.2 The application initially proposed removal of the adjacent street tree on Teesdale 

Road. This was not considered acceptable in terms of biodiversity and amenity and 
has been omitted from the scheme. This complies with Policy EN7 of the 
Nottingham Local Plan. 

 
9 Financial Implications 
 

A financial contribution of £48,235.25 is secured towards off-site Affordable 
Housing, £16,841.11 towards open space improvements and an employment and 
training contribution of £4,611. 
 

10 Legal Implications 
 
The issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement. Should 
legal considerations arise these will be addressed at the meeting. 
 

11 Equality and Diversity Implications 
 
None. 
 

12 Risk Management Issues 
 
None. 

Page 14



 
 

13 Strategic Priorities 
 
Strategic Council Plan 2021-23 Outcome Nine: Better Housing - deliver new 
affordable homes and well-balanced neighbourhoods with a mix of housing types 
that meet Nottingham’s future needs and working to ensure that new developments 
are linked to the local amenities, green spaces and good public transport that local 
people want and need. 
 

14 Crime and Disorder Act implications 
 
None. 
 

15 Value for money 
 
None. 
 

16 List of background papers other than published works or those disclosing 
confidential or exempt information 
 
1. Application No: 22/01525/PFUL3 - link to online case file: 
https://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-
applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage 
 

17 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
Nottingham Local Plan Part 2 (January 2020) 
Aligned Core Strategies (September 2014) 
NPPF (2021) 
Strategic Council Plan 2021-23 
 

Contact Officer:  
Mr Phil Shaw, Case Officer, Development Management.  
Email: philip.shaw@nottinghamcity.gov.uk.      Telephone: 0115 8764076

Page 15

https://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage


Key
°0 0.02 0.04km

Nomad printed map

Key
Printed map generated by a Nomad user on 13/03/2023. This map is not suitable for publishing, for high quality maps please contact gi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk.

Nottingham City Council, Crown copyright and database rights 2023 OS 100019317. Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions.

City Boundary
Description
A map printed from Nomad.

Page 16



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

My Ref: 22/01525/PFUL3 (PP-11440613)

Your Ref:

Contact: Mr Phil Shaw

Email: development.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Miss Lauren Kirby
15 Clarendon Street
Nottingham
NG1 5HR
United Kingdom

Development Management
City Planning
Loxley House
Station Street
Nottingham
NG2 3NG

Tel: 0115 8764447
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Date of decision: 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION

Application No: 22/01525/PFUL3 (PP-11440613)
Application by: Mr Alan Forsyth
Location: 159 Hucknall Road, Nottingham, Nottingham City
Proposal: New two-and-a-half storey building to provide 11 one-bed Class C3 supported 

living dwellings with staff and communal areas.

Nottingham City Council as Local Planning Authority hereby GRANTS PLANNING PERMISSION 
for the development described in the above application subject to the following conditions:-

 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development shall not be commenced until the following have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

a) details of the external materials;
b) details of the enclosure of the site, including new and retained boundary walls and railings;
c) details of a scheme for the sustainable drainage of the site;
d) details of the appearance of the cycle storage.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory, in the interests of 
the living conditions of neighburing occupiers and in the interests of sustainable development 
in accordance with Policies 1 and 10 of the Aligned Core Strategies and Policies CC3 and 
DE1 of the Local Plan.

1

Time limit

Pre-commencement conditions
(The conditions in this section require further matters to be submitted to the local planning authority 
for approval before starting work)

Page 17



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

3. A landscaping and planting scheme shall be provided for the development. In particular:

a) no dwelling shall be occupied until a detailed landscaping scheme indicating the type, 
height, species and location of all new trees and shrubs, comprising native species and plants 
attractive to pollinators, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority;
b) the approved landscaping scheme shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
seasons following the occupation of the dwellings or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner; and
c) any trees or plants which die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased 
within a period of five years shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar 
size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory and in the interests 
of biodiversity in accordance with Policies 10 and 17 of the Aligned Core Strategies and 
Policies DE1, DE2 and EN6 of the Local Plan.

4. Notwithstanding any details or notes in the application documents stating or implying 
otherwise, the dwelling(s) hereby permitted shall be designed and constructed to meet the 
optional water efficiency requirement of 110 Litres per person per day as specified by Part G 
of Schedule 1 and regulation 36 (2) (b) of the Building Regulations 2010 (as amended).

Reason: to ensure efficient use of water resources in the interests of sustainability, to comply 
with Policy CC1 of the Nottingham Local Plan.

(Note: This condition affects the requirements of the Building Regulations that apply to 
this development. You must ensure that the building control body responsible for 
supervising the work is informed of this condition)

Standard condition- scope of permission

S1. Except as may be modified by the conditions listed above, the development shall be carried 
out in complete accordance with the details described in the following drawings/documents:
Planning Layout reference HKR-HD-20001-PL revision C, received 6 March 2023
Plan reference HKR-HD-28001-PL revision C, received 6 March 2023
Planning Layout reference HKR-HD-23001-PL revision C, received 6 March 2023
Planning Layout reference HKR-HD-24001-PL revision C, received 6 March 2023
Planning Layout reference HKR-HD-22001-PL revision C, received 6 March 2023
Elevations reference HKR-HD-20102-PL revision C, received 6 March 2023
Elevations reference HKR-HD-20101-PL revision C, received 6 March 2023

Reason: To determine the scope of this permission.

Informatives

 1. This permission is valid only for the purposes of Part III of the Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. It does not remove the need to obtain any other consents that may be necessary, nor does it 
imply that such other consents will necessarily be forthcoming. It does not override any restrictions 

2

Pre-occupation conditions
(The conditions in this section must be complied with before the development is occupied)

Regulatory/ongoing conditions
(Conditions relating to the subsequent use of the development and other regulatory matters)

Page 18



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

contained in the deeds to the property or the rights of neighbours. You are advised to check what 
other restrictions there are and what other consents may be needed, for example from the 
landowner, statutory bodies and neighbours.  This permission is not an approval under the Building 
Regulations.

 2. The reason for this decision, and a summary of the policies the local planning authority has had 
regard to are set out in the officer's delegated report, enclosed herewith and forming part of this 
decision.

 3. Flood Risk and Drainage
Proposed drainage should be summarised as a sustainable drainage strategy or statement 
containing the following (as a minimum):

o Site plan & impermeable area 
o Topographic survey of the site 
o Details on the existing surface water drainage arrangements for the site
o Basic ground investigation to show potential viability of infiltration
o Existing & proposed rates and volumes of surface water run-off generated by the site
o Appropriate evidence to support how the site will drain 
o Details of how the surface water run-off will be managed
o Drainage plan showing the layout of the proposed drainage (both foul and surface water),
o Calculations to support design 
o Major developments should incorporate sustainable drainage systems unless there is clear 
evidence that this would be inappropriate (as per National Planning Policy Framework 167 & 169) 
o Details on management & maintenance of drainage system

As per S3 and S6 of the Non statutory technical standards for SuDS, when developing previously 
developed sites the peak flow and volume runoff should be as close as is reasonably practicable to 
the greenfield runoff rate from the development for the same rainfall event, but in any event should 
never exceed the rate of discharge from the development prior to redevelopment for that event. 

We are aware of historical flooding along Hucknall Road and Haydn Road so there are 
opportunities here to make improvements to reduce downstream impacts.

 4. It should be noted that the City Council granted this permission following the signing of an 
agreement between the Council and the applicant in accordance with the provisions of Section 106 
of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990, Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 or 
Section 33 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. The terms of the 
agreement bind successors in the title and assigns and can be enforced against them.

Where a condition specified in this decision notice requires any further details to be submitted for 
approval, please note that an application fee will be payable at the time such details are submitted 
to the City Council. A form is available from the City Council for this purpose.

Your attention is drawn to the rights of appeal set out on the attached sheet.

3

Page 19



- 4 -

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

RIGHTS OF APPEAL
Application No: 22/01525/PFUL3 (PP-11440613)

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the City Council to impose conditions on the grant of 
permission for the proposed development, then he or she can appeal to the Secretary of State under 
section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Any appeal must be submitted within six months of the date of this notice.  You can obtain an appeal 
form from the Customer Support Unit, The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/15 Eagle Wing, Temple 
Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN.  Phone: 0117 372 6372.  Appeal forms 
can also be downloaded from the Planning Inspectorate website at http://www.planning-
inspectorate.gov.uk/pins/index.htm.  Alternatively, the Planning Inspectorate have introduced an 
online appeals service which you can use to make your appeal online. You can find the service 
through the Appeals area of the Planning Portal - see www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs.

The Inspectorate will publish details of your appeal on the internet (on the Appeals area of the 
Planning Portal).  This may include a copy of the original planning application form and relevant 
supporting documents supplied to the local authority by you or your agent, together with the 
completed appeal form and information you submit to the Planning Inspectorate.  Please ensure that 
you only provide information, including personal information belonging to you that you are happy will 
be made available to others in this way.  If you supply personal information belonging to a third party 
please ensure you have their permission to do so.  More detailed information about data protection 
and privacy matters is available on the Planning Portal.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but will not normally 
be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if the City Council could not for legal reasons 
have granted permission or approved the proposals without the conditions it imposed.

In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely because the City 
Council based its decision on a direction given by him.

PURCHASE NOTICES

If either the City Council or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop land or grants it 
subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial 
use in its existing state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the 
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted. This procedure is set out in 
Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

COMPENSATION

In certain limited circumstances, a claim may be made against the City Council for compensation 
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State. The 
circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990.
  

STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING

Nottingham City Council has a statutory responsibility for agreeing and registering addresses. If the 
development will create one or more new addresses or streets (for example a new build or 
conversion) please contact address.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk as soon as possible, 

Page 20



- 5 -

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

quoting your planning application reference. Any addresses assigned outside of this process will 
not be officially recognised and may result in difficulties with service delivery.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4a 159 Hucknall Road Nottingham Nottingham City NG5 1FD
	Report of Director of Planning and Transport




